
ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 1 of 19 

 

Government/Industry Aeronautical Charting Forum (ACF) 

Meeting 14-01 

April 30 – May 1, 2014 

MITRE 

McLean, VA 20172 

 

CHARTING GROUP MINUTES 

 

I. Opening Remarks 
 
The Aeronautical Charting Forum (ACF) was hosted by The MITRE Corporation at their location in McLean, VA. Valerie 
Watson, AJV-3, opened the forum on Wednesday, April 30. Valerie acknowledged the ACF Co-chair Tom Schneider, AFS-
420, who presided over the Instrument Procedures Group (IPG) portion of the Forum. Valerie also expressed 
appreciation to MITRE and MITRE representative Al Herndon for hosting the 14-01 ACF. Al Herndon welcomed the ACF 
participants to MITRE. 

II. Review Minutes of Last Meeting, ACF 13-02 
 
The minutes from the 13-02 ACF meeting were distributed electronically last fall via the AeroNav ACF website: 
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/. The minutes were accepted as submitted with no changes or 
corrections. 
  

III. Agenda Approval 
 
The agenda for the 14-01 meeting was accepted as presented.  

IV. Change in ACF-Charting Group URL 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, briefed the audience of the change in the web address for the ACF - Charting Group. The new url 
is as follows:  

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/ 

Please update your browser’s book marks accordingly as the old address will not have a redirect link to the new URL 
after 1 June 2014. 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 2 of 19 

 

 

V. Presentations, ACF Working Group Reports and ACF Project Reports 
 
ICAO/IFPP Committee Report 
 
Mike Webb, AFS-420 and U.S. member of the ICAO Instrument Flight Procedures Panel (IFPP), provided an update 
on the ICAO/IFPP Committee activities and an overview of the key topics of the recent spring meeting of the 
ICAO/IFPP Integration Working Group (IWG) held in Dubai, UAE.  
 
Mike reported that there has been resolution of the IACO State letter regarding Performance Based Navigation 
(PBN) procedure naming conventions. ICAO will change the PBN procedure title from RNAV to RNP by 2022. The US 
is going to retain RNAV in future PBN procedure titles. That is the only difference that the US will file and plans are 
to adopt all other ICAO PBN charting recommendations.  
 
George Bland, USAF, asked if the ICAO Aeronautical Charting Manual Doc 8697 will be updated with the PBN 
charting standards by 2022. Mike stated that the manual will not be updated until all of the PBN details have been 
finalized.  
 
Mike then presented an overview of Performance Based Operations Aviation Rulemaking Committee (PARC) PBN 
Procedure Naming Action Team activities since the last ACF. The team focus is on determining recommendations to 
present to the PARC regarding an implementation strategy. In order to do this, the group has come up with several 
prototype approach plates showing the myriad of possibilities with regard to showing a single NAVSPEC vs multiple 
NAVSPECS on a single procedure. The prototypes also depict a PBN requirements box presented in different ways 
and in different locations on the chart that are still under consideration by the Action Team. A sampling of 
prototypes was presented to the group.  
 
Kevin Bridges, AIR-131, stated that if multiple NAVSPECS are going to be used on a single procedure, the whole 
procedure could be removed from the pilot’s database if unable to comply with any part of the PBN requirements 
for that procedure. Martin Zillig, Lido, stated that if portions of the procedure are unusable, the FMS may be able to 
remove just the transitions that are not compatible. 
 
Rob Goodson, NGA, asked if other chart producers will have to comply with the charting requirements for PBN. Ted 
Thompson, Jeppesen, stated that the PBN information that is on the source document will be charted, however, the 
details of how the information is presented on the chart could differ. 
 
Mike stated that by the next ACF he expects the PARC to have a set of recommendations ready to present to the 
FAA. 
 
ACTION: Mike Webb, AFS-420, will provide an update at the next ACF. 
 
  
Airport Surveying – GIS Program 
 
Dr. Mike McNerney, AAS-100, provided an update on the progress made on the FAA’s Airports GIS program. Since 
the last ACF, AAS-100 has continued to make improvements on the electronic Airport Layout Plans (ALP) with the 
goal being to provide a custom printed ALP. Dr. McNerney reported that testing of the Modification of Standards 
tool has begun with the ASW and ASO regions. He also reported that improvements have continued to the 
repository for aerial photography on the cloud server and the number of ortho-rectified aerial imaging continues to 
grow.  
 
A new feature highlighted by Dr. McNerney is the Airport 20:1 Penetration Visualization Tool. This new tool will be 
expanded in the future to other obstacle penetration surfaces.  

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01_ICAO_IFPP_Committee_Report.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01_Airport_Surveying_GIS_Prgm_McNerney.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 3 of 19 

 

 
Dr. McNerney also reported that the planned data migration from NASR into Airports GIS is to take place in 
September 2015. Once that migration takes place, Airports GIS will be the authoritative source for airport data. 
 
Terry Rhea, AAS-100, then provided a demonstration of the Surface Analysis and Visualization Tool (SAVT). SAVT 
allows users to analyze, review, edit, and mitigate surface penetrations. The tool utilizes Google Earth images and 
enables the user to zoom in and look at the obstacle surface and see the objects attribute data. The data is then 
compiled into a Penetration Report which can be used by the airport to generate a compliance plan detailing how 
the airport plans to mitigate the penetrations. A mitigation summary report can be viewed to check on the status of 
all objects in the penetration report. Once the mitigation report has been submitted by the airport, the flight 
procedures office can see the report and the mitigation actions that have been taken.  

Kel Christianson, AFS-470, inquired as to the various sources of obstacle data being used. Dr McNerney stated that 
currently the tool is pulling obstacle data from AirNav, FAA’s Digital Obstacle File, airport surveys, etc. However, they 
are working toward having a single authoritative source for all obstacle data.  

Bob Lamond, NBAA, praised the new tool. Bob suggested that that a column be added for object type (antenna, 
water tower, etc.,) on the penetration report. He also stated that he would like to see this made publicly available as 
soon as possible. Dr. McNerney stated that they are in the process of making the tool available primarily to airports. 
Eventually it will be available for public use as read-only. Bob expressed concern about the server limitations and 
how that will affect public access. Brad Rush, AJV-3, stated that, based on his interaction with the Advisory and 
Rulemaking Committee (RTCA), the FAA will release this data, and yes, it will be available to be viewed by the public. 
The server limitations are expected to be resolved soon.  

Rob Goodson, NGA, inquired as to the datum being used in the database. Dr. McNerney was not sure about the 
datum and said that he would get that answer.  
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, asked how the airport data will be verified. Dr. McNerney stated that once the database is 
established as the authoritative source, airports will be required to enter their data into the website and the airport 
will be the source. Valerie asked if there are requirements for the airports to verify the originally imported airport 
data from NASR, much of which is old. Dr. McNerney said that the data will be sent to the airports, they will be 
required to verify the data, and then submit it with a digital signature.  
 
Post meeting Update. “The deployment to the Eastern Service Center has been put on hold because of user issues 
with the RAPT teams. A version is expected to be released to the Eastern Service Area airports that only allows the 
Visualization and Analysis portion but no pushing of data to the RAPT within 30 days. An expected test of 50 airports 
in the Eastern Service Area with pushing of mitigation plans to the RAPT in 60-120 days is anticipated. All schedules 
are very preliminary.” 
 
ACTION: Dr. Mike McNerney, AAS-100, will provide an update at the next ACF. 
 
 
Discontinuation of VOR Services 
 
Rowena Mendez, AJM-324, provided an update on the progress made since the last ACF. Rowena stated that the 
plan includes the transition from 967 VORs to 500 VORs by a revised target date of FY2025. She stated that currently 
AJM-324 is focused on collaborating with the Tactical Operations Committee (TOC), working with DoD to determine 
which VORs they can sanction the discontinuance of and collaborating with AJV on how to integrate the VOR MON 
plan with the PBN program, the National Route Plan, and with Flight Procedures and Charting to insure that NAS 
operations are not compromised.  
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01_Airport_Surveying_GIS_Prgm_Rhea.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01_Discontinuation_of_VOR_Services.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 4 of 19 

 

Gary Fiske, AJV-822, asked how the changes to the NAS infrastructure will be funded. Rowena responded that the 
program is currently focused on analyzing the overall technical and operational impact of the discontinuation of VOR 
services. Once the analytical work is completed, her office can start work on determining the associated costs.  
 
John Belk, AJV-141, asked if there is an expectation that there will be RNAV replacements for conventional 
procedures as part of this program. He stated that there is not enough funding for that to be the solution. Rowena 
responded that currently, her office is only looking at the future costs of the discontinuation and that current VOR 
discontinuations based on PBN replacement procedures are not currently part of the program.  
 
Mike McGinnis, American Airlines, asked if the large-scale Metroplex redesigns currently underway will help with 
this transition. Rowena responded that yes, they will help because they rely more heavily on PBN. Gary supported 
this and stated that metroplex projects are not designing routes that are predicated on NAVAIDs because they are 
aware of this future transition. 
 
Bob Lamond, NBAA, stated that he is hopeful the plan is to retain sufficient VORs to ensure safety. He stated that he 
had submitted concerns to the FAA which have not been addressed, and VORs are already beginning to be turned 
off.  
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, commented that there needs to be a greater understanding of the future usage of 
standalone DME facilities. The charting offices have a lot of questions about how to publish standalone DME facility 
data. Is there an associated frequency? Morse code? Associated RCOs? Rowena responded that they don’t know all 
the answers yet. Right now, DMEs are still defined by the associated VORs. Valerie stated that for now, AJV and AIM 
will not publish standalone DMEs and will continue to leave them in the database as a VOR/DME with a remark that 
the associated VOR is out of service. Valerie asked Rowena if she could collaborate with her office and AIM to help 
define the database & charting requirements for standalone DMEs. Rowena agreed that when she has more 
answers, she will communicate them. 
 
Gary asked if standalone DMEs will be left in the same location where the DME had been previously paired with a 
VOR or if the standalone DME could be relocated. Rowena stated that yes, relocation is a possibility and may be an 
opportunity for the FAA to eliminate some of its leases and save money. 
 
Rowena stated that the Final Investment Decision will be made in FY 2015. Then the VOR Discontinuation Plan will 
start to take shape. Rowena is looking for ideas on how the discontinuation process can be made more efficient. She 
said that her office will continue to collaborate with all the stakeholders to identify requirements and address the 
concerns. 
 
ACTION:  Rowena Mendez, AJM-324, will provide an update at the next ACF. 
 
 
PBN Implementation Process Order 7100.41 
 
Dawn Ramirez, AJV-121, briefed the topic as a follow up to the Route Planning Briefing given at ACF 13-02. Dawn 
stated that there is change in focus on the National Route Plan from what was presented previously. There is a new 
PBN Implementation Process Joint Order 7100.41 which relates to the development and implementation process for 
PBN procedures and routes. The details of the new implementation process are outlined in the presentation slides.  
 
Bruce McGray, AFS-410, asked who is coordinating these changes with the VOR MON program office? Bruce stated 
the need to coordinate all the stakeholders for better collaboration. Dawn agreed that there needs to be more 
coordination in the future between the PBN office and the VOR MON office. 
 
ACTION:  Dawn Ramirez, AJV-121, will provide an update at the next ACF. 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01_PBN_Order_Briefing_Guide.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/regulations_policies/orders_notices/index.cfm/go/document.information/documentID/1023306


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 5 of 19 

 

 
VI. Outstanding Charting Topics 

 
05-02-179 Attention All-users Page for Simultaneous, Parallel RNAV Departures & PRM Approaches  
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, briefed the topic. Valerie reported that AAUPs for approaches have been published. She also 
reported that the charting specifications are in place for the publication of RNAV Departure AAUPs, though none 
have yet appeared in the National Flight Data Digest (NFDD) for publication. 
 
Kel Christianson, AFS-470, reported that the RNAV Departure AAUP guidance will be in FAA Order 8260.46 and the 
changes are to be published in May 2014. The content is the same as the original Order 8400.AAUP and formalizes 
the responsibilities for the creation, maintenance and publication of AAUPs. Kel added that no requests to publish 
RNAV Departure AAUPs have been received to date.  
 
Tom Schneider, AFS-420, reported that the Notice for AAUPs for approaches will run out in June 2014. There will be 
a gap in the guidance until the approach guidance is published in FAA Order 8200.19, which is set to be published in 
February 2015. 
 
Valerie stated that this issue shall remain open until the final guidance is published in FAA Orders 8200.19 and 
8260.46. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION:  Kel Christianson, AFS-470, and Tom Schneider, AFS-420, to report on progress of the publication of the 

Orders. 
 
 
07-01-195 Charting & AFD Information Re: Class E Surface Areas 
 
Paul Gallant, AJV-11, was not in attendance and no status report was submitted on the progress made on the 
updates to the AIM and FAA Order JO 7400.2. 
 
Lynette Jamison, AJR-B1, suggested that Paul Eure, AJV-11, be briefed on this issue and request his assistance in 
moving this issue forward. 
 
Bob Lamond, NBAA, speaking on behalf of the original submitter of the Recommendation Document, expressed his 
dissatisfaction with the FAA for not yet having published the airspace that was agreed upon and finishing the work 
required to close this item. Bob requested that the issue be elevated to a higher management level within the FAA. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Brad Rush, AJV-3, will contact AJV-11 to elevate this issue to a higher FAA management level and report 

at the next ACF. 
 
ACTION: Valerie Watson, AJV-3, will contact Paul Gallant and Paul Eure, AJV-11, to try to get this issue moving 

forward and will report at the next ACF. 
 
ACTION: Paul Gallant, AJV-11, to provide an update at the next ACF. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/05-02-179_Attention_All-users_Page_for_RNAV_Departures.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/07-01-195_Depiction_of_Class_E_Surface_Areas.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 6 of 19 

 

 
09-01-214 Low Visibility Operations/SMGCS (LVO/SMGCS) Taxi Charts (Previously titled as SMGCS Taxi Charts) 

  
Bruce McGray, AFS-410, briefed the topic. Bruce stated that work has been done to raise the awareness of 
LVO/SMGCS operations in the US. ICAO harmonization efforts have also continued regarding US and International 
rules and procedures.  
 
Bruce stated that the FAA is considering alternatives for Enhanced Flight Vision System (EFVS) technologies to 
enable aircraft to operate in LVO/SMGCS conditions. Bruce added that the FAA is open to considering the use of 
high-resolution Airport Moving Map (AMM) displays as an approved substitute. However, if the FAA is going to allow 
moving maps as a substitute, there would be an even greater need to secure reliable data.  
 
Ted Thompson, Jeppesen, asked about the possibility of using high-resolution AMM EFB applications being allowed 
as substitutes. This again raised the issue of the lack of a centralized repository within the FAA for SMGCS procedural 
source information. It was noted that the Airport GIS program may address SMGCS-related airport features such as 
lighting, signage and markings. However, currently, both procedural information and airport feature data is available 
only from individual airport authorities. Bruce stated that he is trying to elevate the need for good data to a higher 
management level within the FAA.  
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, voiced her concern that the FAA is obligated in Order 8000.94 to put a remark in the AFD 
entries for those airports with LVO/SMGSCS operations and that AeroNav Products has not yet received guidance. 
Bruce responded that this issue remains unresolved and further discussion is required between himself and the AFD 
team. He stated that progress had been slowed because of issues with the GIS database that have yet to be 
resolved.  
 
Lynette Jamison, AJR-B1, asked that if a remark is placed in AFD airport entries, would a NOTAM requirement be 
established for when there are LVO/SMGCS-related equipment outages? If this is the case, she stated that this 
would have to go into the NOTAM Order when remarks start going in to the AFD. Bruce responded that they have 
not yet addressed NOTAM requirements.  
 
Joshua Fenwick, AeroNav Data, asked if the FAA is planning to publish LVO/SMGSCS charts. Valerie responded that 
the FAA is not able to produce LVO/SMGCS charts at present due to both the absence of funding and the absence of 
a reliable source flow. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Bruce McGray, AFS-410, will coordinate with Valerie Watson, AJV-3, and the AFD Team regarding the 

publication of an AFD remark.  
 
ACTION: Bruce McGray, AFS-410, will coordinate with Airports Engineering, AAS-100, on acquiring funding for the 

following: loading of LVO/SMGCS attribute data into Airports GIS, and loading of procedural data and 
routing notes into a publicly disseminated database. 

 
ACTION: Bruce McGray, AFS-410, will coordinate with the NOTAM office regarding adding language into the 

NOTAM Order for LVO/SMGSCS equipment outages.  
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/09-01-214_SMGCS_Taxi_Charts.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01-RD214_LVO-SMGCS.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 7 of 19 

 

10-02-233 Removal of (ATC) Crossing Restrictions from STARs 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, briefed the issue. Brad Rush, AJV-3, stated that there is only one Departure Procedure 
remaining with an (ATC) crossing restriction which is scheduled to be removed in July 2014. An IACC specification 
change is currently in the approval process to remove the guidance related to adding (ATC) crossing restrictions to 
the charts.  
 
STATUS: CLOSED 
 
 
11-01-238 Aerobatic Area Symbols on VFR Sectional Chart 
 
Chris Criswell, AJV-22, stated that since the last ACF, he has been in contact with Sue Gardner, AFS-800, who is part 
of a group working to verify the Aerobatic Practice Areas that are currently published in the Special Notices section 
of the AFD. Chris stated that aerobatic areas are contained in a database which exists within AFS-800. An effort has 
also begun within the working group to establish criteria for future publication and charting of Aerobatic Practice 
Areas. Chris expressed Sue’s interest in a future meeting with AIM and AJV-3 regarding the establishment of 
publication/charting criteria.  
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Chris Criswell, AJV-22, will continue to work with AFS-800 to establish a list of current Aerobatic Areas 

and to establish publication/charting criteria for these areas. 
 
 
13-01-260 Inclusion of Metering Frequency, 133.57, to MSP Airport Diagram – FAA AL 264 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, reported that an IACC specification change has been submitted for the inclusion of metering 
frequencies on FAA Airport Diagrams. Valerie is also working with the National Flight Data Center (NFDC) to 
standardize the format for storing and publishing metering frequencies. This issue shall remain open until metering 
frequencies have been charted on the appropriate airport diagrams. There are currently only four airports with 
published metering frequencies: CLE, MSP, ORD, and STL. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION:  Valerie Watson, AJV-3, will report on the status of the publication of Metering Frequencies on Airport 

Diagrams at the next ACF. 
 
 
13-01-261 Alaska Ground Based Transceivers (GBT) Locations 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, briefed the issue. Valerie commented on her attempts to obtain the release of ADS-B tower 
locations for publication. The ADS-B office is currently in discussions with General Council regarding the release of 
this data and as of this date, no decision has been made. 
 
Lynette Jameson, AJR-B1, stated that there are around 400 GBT locations that have been identified by Tech Ops, 
some of which have been given identifiers so they can be databased and a NOTAM can be published against an 
outage. There was some confusion over the issue of whether or not there are currently GBT locations databased in 
NASR. It was confirmed by Chris Criswell, AJV-22, after the conclusion of the ACF that GBTs are NOT currently 
databased in NASR. 
  

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/11-01-238-Misc-sybmols-vfr-charts-Aerobatic-area.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-260-metering-freq-133-57-to-msp-airport-diagram.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-261-GBTs_for_Supplement.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 8 of 19 

 

John Collins, GA Pilot, stated that the FAA currently publishes GBT locations on Gulf of Mexico Charts. AJV-3 was 
unable to confirm this at the meeting. Post ACF, it was confirmed that the ADS-B locations depicted on the Gulf of 
Mexico Charts were requested by the office that was then called Cartographic Standards and resided in Aeronautical 
Information Management (AIM). The GBT locations were provided by the requesting office in the form of a memo. 
 
Valerie inquired as to what progress has been made since last ACF on the AFD Team’s discussion with the Alaska and 
Western Regional Offices regarding ADS-B coverage graphics at 5,000 and 10,000 foot flight levels to be published in 
the Alaska Flight Supplement. Bob Carlson, AJV-322, reported that he hasn’t spoken to the Region regarding the 
graphics. He stated that the AFD Team would not create the graphics and that the graphics would have to submitted 
print-ready from the regional offices. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION:  Valerie Watson, AJV-3, will continue to attempt to obtain the release of ADS-B tower locations for 

publication in NASR so that 3rd party vendors would have access to them.  
 
ACTION: Bob Carlson, AJV-322, will contact the Alaska and Western Regional Offices to see if they wish to provide 

additional print-ready ADS-B coverage graphics at 5,000 and 10,000 foot flight levels to be published in 
the Supplement Alaska. 

 
13-01-262 Airport Facility Directory (AFD) Depiction of Traffic Pattern Altitudes 
 
Chris Criswell, AJV-22, reported that, per ACF recommendation, all traffic pattern altitudes, standard and non-
standard, will be added into NASR for all airports. This will be a day forward implementation beginning in July 2014.  
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, stated that this issue will remain open pending implementation. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Chris Criswell, AVJ-22, will report on the progress of populating all traffic pattern altitudes at the next 

ACF. 
 

 
13-01-263 Airport Facility Directory (AFD) Airport Manager Contact Information 
 
Bob Carlson, AJV-322, reported that Airport Manager contact information has now been published in the AFD. Work 
is currently underway to also publish this information in the Alaska Supplement. 
 
STATUS: CLOSED 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-262-AFD-depiction-traffic-patterns-alt.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 9 of 19 

 

13-01-264 Flight Path Angle (FPA) on STAR Charts with Published Vertical Profiles 
 
Kel Christianson, AFS-470, shared a statement from Mark Steinbicker, AFS-470, regarding discussions in the PARC on 
the subject of FPAs. No decision has been made yet. However, Mark’s statement indicated that there should not be 
an expectation that the angles will be charted.  
 
There was general disappointment in the room at the news that FPAs may not be published. Discussion followed as 
to whether the FPA would be useful only for specific operators and whether or not the FAA could make this data 
available so that those operators who can use it would have it.  
 
Bob Lamond, NBAA, stated that the FPA would not have limited use and that many FMS systems can use FPAs. Kevin 
Allen, US Airways, reiterated his recommendation that the angle be presented as “suggested” or “advisory”. 
 
Jim Arrighi, AJV-141, commented on the possibility that the data could be made available for specific operators that 
are equipped use it. Ted Thompson, Jeppesen, stated that Jeppesen would not add FPAs to the charts or to the data 
unless it was included on the FAA procedure source document. He also commented that there are chart/database 
compatibility issues that need to be considered. There should not be items that are databased that are not also 
depicted on the chart and vice versa. 
 
Brad Rush, AJV-3, stated that there is currently nothing in the criteria to support charting FPAs. In order to get the 
FPA published on a chart, a policy decision will have to be made. Kevin reiterated that he would like to see a change 
in the policy so “advisory” FPAs can be charted.  
 
Kel reported that Mark Steinbicker will continue to work this issue in the PARC, taking into consideration the strong 
support from ACF attendees regarding the continued desire have FPAs calculated and published. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION:  Kel Christianson, AFS-470, will report on progress made by the PARC VNAV Action Team. 
 
 
13-01-266 Standardized Depiction of Altitude Restrictions on Bottom, Top and Maintain Altitudes on Standard 
Terminal Arrival (STAR) and Standard Instrument Departures (SIDs) 
 
Tom Schneider, AFS-420, reported that the language supporting the requirement for a top altitude on departures 
has been added to FAA Order 8260.46E which is set to be finalized in June 2014. 
  
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, reported that an IACC Requirement Document to support the publication of a top altitude on 
departures has been submitted to the MPOC. 
 
Jim Arrighi, AJV-141, reported that the Office of Responsibility for FAA Order 7100.9 will be changed from AJV-0 to 
AFS-400 within a couple of months. Jim stated that there will be no policy changes made to the Order until the 
handoff is made official. (Meaning that no Bottom Altitude changes have been or will be made to the Order until it is 
in the hands of Flight Standards.) 
 
Mike McGinnis, American Airlines, brought a concern to the group on behalf of Lev Prichard, APA. Mike briefed the 
group on the NELYN Departure for DFW which has what could be interpreted as two top altitudes associated with 
different departure runways. The original proposal, agreed upon at the last ACF, was understood to be for a single 
top altitude to be established/designated for each departure procedure. The group agreed that there are many 
departures currently published that do not lend themselves to the single top altitude philosophy and will need to be 
redesigned in order to comply. 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-264-Flight_Path_Angles_on-STARS.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-266-Standarized_depiction_of_ALT_Restrictions_SIDs_STARs.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-266-Standarized_depiction_of_ALT_Restrictions_SIDs_STARs.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01-RD266_Std_depiction_Alt_Restrictions_STARS_SIDS.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 10 of 19 

 

 
Brad Rush, AJV-3, stated that the procedure being discussed does not comply with the new criteria and that there 
are many more in the system that do not.  
 
Jim Arrighi stated that he has always asserted that multiple top altitudes would need to be supported. A lengthy and 
spirited discussion ensued which resulted in the conclusion that there had been a breakdown in communication 
regarding single vs multiple top altitudes on a departure. Minutes from the previous ACF support agreement that 
only a single altitude would be supported. In the interim, Tom revised FAA Order 8260.46 and Valerie created 
charting specifications in accordance with this decision. Tom expressed frustration that when the draft version of 
the FAA Order 8260.46E (containing guidance supporting a single top altitude) was circulated for comment, no 
objections were received. Jim stated that the departure guidance needs to be rewritten to include the possibility of 
more than one top altitude and that when the guidance is written for arrival procedures, it too will need to support 
multiple altitudes. 
 
Ted Thompson, Jeppesen, said there is an underlying problem with showing more than one top altitude. Pilots will 
still have to read through multiple altitudes and decide at which point in the procedure which altitude is important 
to them. Ted expressed a concern over the fact that techniques to highlight, denote or identify a single altitude on 
charts will not work in cases where multiple altitudes may be used. He asserted that when numerous items are 
highlighted on a chart, the “highlighting” is lost and the effort is moot. 
 
Rob Goodson, NGA, stated that he supports the depiction of only a single top altitude. He suggested that if there are 
multiple top altitudes, the transitions should be broken up onto multiple procedures. Jim responded that this 
avenue was considered and may well be the ideal solution, but is not likely to be supported for financial reasons.  
 
Tom restated his dissatisfaction with the fact that the FAA Order 8260.46 changes have already been coordinated 
and are scheduled to be published in June 2014, but agreed to pull the Top Altitude guidance from the Order until a 
final decision has been made regarding charting. Once this is complete, the language can be rewritten accordingly. 
 
Valerie stated that she will create new prototype charts and rewrite the charting specification to support the 
possibility of multiple Top Altitudes. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION:  Valerie Watson, AJV-3, will create prototypes for the depiction of multiple top altitudes on Departures. 
 
ACTION:  Valerie Watson, AJV-3, will draft a revised IACC Recommendation Document to support the publication 

of multiple top altitudes on Departures. 
 
ACTION: Tom Schneider, AFS-420, will pull the single top altitude language from FAA Order 8260.46E and rewrite 

it to support the revised decisions made regarding charting multiple top altitudes on Departures. 
 
ACTION: Jim Arrighi, AJV-141, will provide an update on the progress of the transfer of FAA Order JO 7100.9 to 

AFS-400. 
  

 



ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 11 of 19 

 

13-01-267 Addition of ATC Radar Telephone Numbers in FAA AFD 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, reviewed the topic. Gary Fiske, AJV-822, stated that this has been a low priority issue. Gary 
stated that he is personally not opposed to the idea of publishing the telephone numbers; however, having only 
recently been tasked with this issue, he needs to go back and get ATC consensus. Gary did question where the 
numbers will be published and wanted to ensure that such information would be easily accessible by pilots. Gary 
inquired if the plan was to publish the contact telephone numbers on approach plates.  
 
Valerie responded that the current plan is to only publish the numbers in the AFD. John Collins, GA Pilot, 
commented that more pilots are using the AFD because with the widespread use of iPads, airport information is 
easy to retrieve. He believes that publication of the numbers in the AFD would be sufficient. 
 
Ted Thompson, Jeppesen, opposed the idea of putting the numbers on the approach plates because maintenance of 
those numbers would become a problem.  
 
Bob Lamond, NBAA, commented that the original request was not to publish ATC phone numbers on approach 
plates, but to establish a consolidated telephone listing in the AFD. 
 
Eric Fredericks, AJV-823, stated that he supports the listing of ATC phone numbers, but expressed concern that not 
all facilities can accept calls. Eric also questioned who within the ATC facility would handle such incoming phone 
calls. He highlighted that there is no simple solution and that this issue will require some legwork on the part of ATC. 
 
Valerie emphasized that there is pilot support for this issue and the ACF should continue to work toward getting the 
ATC numbers published. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Gary Fiske, AJV-822, will work to get a consolidated ATC response and report at the next ACF. 

 
 
13-01-268 Making Alternate Missed Approach Text Accessible to ATC 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, reviewed the topic. Valerie pointed out that FAA Order 8260.19F was revised to remove the 
“or as directed by ATC” text from the primary missed approach instructions.  
 
Gary Fiske, AJV-822, having only recently been tasked with this issue, stated that there has been no progress within 
ATC since the last ACF. Speaking as a controller, Gary questioned the need to publish and maintain the alternate 
missed approach information when the pilots and controllers already get the information from the NOTAMs. He 
suggested that the guidance in FAA Order JO 7110.65, Paragraph 4-8-9, be changed to remove references to the 
8260 series Form and that the issue be closed.  
 
Tom Schneider, AFS-420, expressed concern that the controller may not be aware of the alternate procedure if they 
don’t have the 8260 series Form. He also noted that if the primary missed approach can’t be used, there could be a 
lag in the time it takes to get the alternate missed approach NOTAM’d. Lynette Jamison, AJR-B1, commented that, in 
her experience, ATC only pulls NOTAMs every eight hours.  
 
Bob Lamond, NBAA, representing the original proponent of this issue, is opposed to closing this item. He indicated 
that he would have Rich Boll, NBAA, contact Gary to discuss the matter offline.  
 
Valerie stated that she believes there is value in having the alternate missed instructions in the hands of the 
controllers rather than relying totally on the NOTAMs. Brad Rush, AJV-3, stated that we need to ensure that the 
controllers are aware that the alternate instructions exist and that they are available. 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-267-Addition_ATC_Phone_Numbers_AFD.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-268-Making_Alternate_Missed_Approach_Text_Accessible_to_ATC.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 12 of 19 

 

 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Gary Fiske, AJV-822, and Rich Boll, NBAA, will discuss the issue offline and report at the next ACF. 
 
ACTION: Gary Fiske, AJV-822, will work to get a consolidated ATC response and report at the next ACF. 
 
 
13-01-270 Step Down Fix Chart Notes 
 
Kevin Bridges, AIR-130, reviewed the topic. He stated that this issue was discussed at the US-IFPP and that there was 
support for changing the profile note. The note will be changed from “LNAV only” to ”LNAV/VNAV and LNAV only”. 
 
Kel Christianson, AFS-470, stated that these changes will be in the next AIM update scheduled for publication in 
January 2015. 
 
Tom Schneider, AFS-420, stated that the note will be updated in the next update of FAA Order 8260.19. 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, stated that updates to the notes will be applied to the charts through either an amendment 
to the 8260 Form or a P-NOTAM.  
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION:  Tom Schneider, AFS-420, will revise FAA Order 8260.19 and report at next ACF. 
 
ACTION:  Kel Christianson, AFS-470, will track requested AIM changes and report back at next ACF.  
 
 
13-02-272 Charted Critical DME Note on RNAV SIDs and STARs 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, reviewed the topic. Tom Schneider, AFS-420, reported the FAA Order 8260.46 already 
supports the depiction of the Critical DME on Departure notes. Brad Rush, AJV-3, stated that there are twelve 
outstanding Departure procedures which will be revised as they are amended. 
 
Jim Arrighi, AVJ-141, reported that FAA Order JO 7100.9 already supports the depiction of the Critical DME in Arrival 
chart notes. Brad reported that a list of STAR procedures with notes that need to be updated has been sent to Air 
Traffic and the notes will be updated as the procedures are amended.  
 
Lynette Jamison, AJR-B1, had no update since the last ACF regarding how NAVAID outage NOTAMs are worded. She 
will continue to research how the NOTAMs are worded and whether or not this needs to be enhanced so that the 
DME portion of a NAVAID can be specified as OTS.  
 
Editor’s Note: Post ACF, Lynette confirmed that the DME aspect of a facility is clearly listed in a NAVAID outage 
NOTAM. 
 
STATUS: CLOSED 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-01-270-Step_down_fix_chart_notes.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 13 of 19 

 

13-02-273 Publication of Diverse Vector Areas (DVAs) 
 
Tom Schneider, AFS-420, reported that FAA Order 8260.46 guidance for DVAs will be published with the June 2014 
update. AFS-420 will work revisions to the Instrument Procedures Handbook (IPH). 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, reported that an IACC Recommendation Document has been submitted to the MPOC in 
support of the publication of DVAs as part of Takeoff entries in the front matter of the TPPs. 
 
Bruce McGray, AFS-410, reported that he is still working on drafting guidance material for insertion into the AIM.  
 
Valerie stated that publication of DVAs should wait until the AIM guidance is in place so that pilots understand what 
they are and how they are to be used. 
 
Editor’s Note: Order 8260.46E was signed on May 30, 2014. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Bruce McGray, AFS-410, will continue to work with AFS-420 on drafting guidance material on DVAs for 

insertion into the AIM and report back at the next ACF. 
 
ACTION: Tom Schneider, AFS-420, will report on updates to the IPH. 
 
 

VII. New Charting Topics 
 
14-01-274 Solar Power Plant Ocular Hazard Symbol on Aeronautical Charts 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, briefed the issue on behalf of the submitter, the FAA Western Service Center Operations 
Support Group. Valerie stated that the number of Solar Energy Power Plants has rapidly increased over the past 
several years. Many of these sites cover hundreds of acres and can contain hundreds of thousands of mirrors. 
Pictures were displayed to the group of several existing plants. The Service Center is concerned that the only thing 
charted currently is the associated obstruction tower often located in the center of the solar farm. This does not 
address the associated glare from the mirrors during day-time operations, which may present an ocular hazard to 
flight crews passing within the vicinity of such solar farms. The submitter of this request would like to see solar 
farms indicated on visual charts not only as a visual landmark for VFR navigation, but also identified as a potential 
hazard to pilots. 
 
Ron Haag, AJV-321, stated that there is already a precedent for similar hazards being shown on the visual charts as a 
landmark symbol with a boxed note.  
 
Ted Thompson, Jeppesen, asked how the information will be sourced and maintained. Chris Criswell, AJV-22, 
questioned why it would have to be databased and stated that there are currently similar items on visual charts that 
are not contained in any database. Ron stated that his office could go through the Operations Support Group (OSG) 
to get a listing of the areas that should be charted. 
 
John Moore, Jeppesen, stated that the group still needs to try to define the problem. He questioned whether these 
areas should be considered as landmarks or if these sites should be considered a hazard and charted as such. He 
started that the source would have to meet certain criteria in order to be considered a hazard.  
 
Melissa McCaffrey, AOPA, stated that she is part of the Southern California Airspace Users Working Group and pilots 
there have stated that this is a hazard. She offered to go back to that group and try to get more information from 
pilots in that area.  

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/13-02-273-Publication-of-Diverse-Vector-Areas-DVAs.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/14-01-274_Solar_Pwr_Plnt_Ocular_Hzrd_Symbol.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01-RD274-Solar_Power_Plants.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 14 of 19 

 

 
JoIda Reed, AJV-W21, stated that these areas are potential hazards and recommends that they be charted as such. 
Jolda cited the Airport Cooperative Research Program report regarding solar energy and its potential impacts on 
aviation in her comments. 
 
Valerie stated that we do not have enough information yet to know whether or not this should be defined as a 
hazard or if it should be charted as such.  Visual charting team can, under current specifications, show these farms as 
landmark objects or areas with accompanying text to identify them as solar farms, but it is beyond the scope of the 
charting offices to designate them as “hazards”. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Ron Haag, AJV-321, will work with the Western Service Area, Operations Support Group, to pursue the 

charting of these areas a landmark object or area symbol with identifying text. 
 
ACTION:  Melissa McCaffrey, AOPA, will gather more information from pilots in Southern California and will report 

back on the scope of the problem. 
 
 
14-01-275 Charting Speed Limited Areas on Instrument Approach Plates 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, briefed the issue on behalf of the submitter, Bennett Taber, Dreamline Aviation. Valerie 
stated that the recommendation relates to pilots exceeding the 200K speed limit below Class B airspace because the 
parameters of the Class B airspace is not depicted on approach charts. To demonstrate the concern to the group, 
Valerie showed an approach into Santa Ana, CA (SNA). The proponent contends that pilots are unaware when flying 
the approach that they are under a shelf of LAX Class B airspace and must reduce their speed below 200K. Mr. Taber 
suggests that the parameters of Class B airspace be graphically depicted on Instrument Approach Plates (IAPs) to 
insure that pilots do not exceed the speed restriction specified in 14 CFR Sec 91.117(c). 
 
Gary Fiske, AJV-822, stated that currently ATC may assign an instruction, but the rule may require something else. 
He stated that the rule trumps ATC direction. Gary stated that this may soon become a non-issue due to an ongoing 
rulemaking action change to 14 CFR Sec 91.117(c) that will add the language “or as otherwise authorized by ATC”. 
This revision will permit ATC to assign speeds under Class B airspace higher than the specified 200K and pilots will 
not be in conflict when adhering to the ATC instruction. 
 
Valerie questioned the group as to whether these areas should be shown on the approach charts. She stated that it 
was her understanding that pilots are expected to conduct the necessary pre-flight activities so that they are aware 
if they will be entering into Class airspace.  
 
Ted Thompson, Jeppesen, stated that showing airspace on the charts would be cartographically impossible due to 
several issues including chart clutter and the fact that DPs and STARs are not drawn to scale. Rob Goodson, NGA, 
agreed that charting airspace on the IAPs would not be possible due to chart clutter.  
 
Bob Lamond, NBAA, stated that part of the problem is that there are speeds on the charts that violate the rules. Ted 
stated that there seems to be a disconnect between PBN aircraft and the structure and regulation of non-PBN 
airspace. Valerie stated that charting cannot solve those issues. 
 
Gary reiterated that, once the rule gets changed, this issue should no longer be a concern. Brad Rush, AJV-3, 
responded that the rule change is part of the answer, but that pilots need to be situationally aware of their location 
relative to the Class B airspace and behave accordingly. 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/14-01-275_Charting_Spd_Lmtd_Areas_on_IAPs.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 15 of 19 

 

Mike McGinnis, American Airlines, stated that if a pilot is looking at an approach chart, there is no awareness that he 
is under a Class B shelf. He suggested that rather than chart the parameters of the airspace, perhaps a note could be 
placed on the chart to make the pilot aware. Brad stated that the approach charts are not designed to warn pilots 
about airspace. There are 30 Class B areas in the country, they are all located in high profile metropolitan areas and 
pilots are not unaware of them. Ted and Valerie both stated that adding a note would cause too much chart clutter.  
 
Brad asked Gary to contact SOCAL TRACON regarding their local situation and specifically the alleged high numbers 
of speed violations in the area. 
 
At the end of the discussion, Valerie asked the group if there was support for the depiction of Class B airspace on the 
approach charts. There was general agreement that a charting solution is not the answer.  
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION:  Gary Fiske, AJV-822, will update the group on the status of the change to the Rule. 
  
ACTION: Gary Fiske, AJV-822, will contact SOCAL TRACON regarding these issues and the discussion at the ACF 

and report back to the group. 
 
 
14-01-276 Removal of Non-Alaska Facility Information from Alaska Supplement 
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, briefed the issue on behalf of the submitter, Marshall Severson, FAA Alaska Flight Services 
Information Area Group. Mr. Severson is asking to remove non-Alaska facilities information from the Alaska 
Supplement. Over the last few years, the Alaska group has been slowly identifying concerns about accuracy of the 
data.  
 
Valerie stated that requests to add certain non-Alaska airport or facility information into the Alaska Supplement 
have come in over the last 30 years by special request. Valerie expressed hesitation for the removal of such content 
without an understanding of how that will impact the users. Before agreeing to remove this information from the 
Supplement, she stated that the users should be polled to see if there is consensus. Valerie asked Melissa 
McCaffrey, AOPA, to take the issue back and speak with the AOPA membership regarding this issue. 
 
Mike Yorke, AAL-03, speaking as a user of the Alaska Supplement, stated that he feels that it is helpful to have the 
non-Alaska information published. He is aware of the proponent’s recommendation and said that the issue was 
being raised because it appears that the non-Alaskan information is not being maintained and there are a lot of 
errors in the data. Valerie responded that the FAA is responsible for the upkeep of the data. If errors are found, they 
should be reported. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Melissa McCaffrey, AOPA, will speak with the AOPA membership regarding the possible removal of non-

Alaska information from the Alaska Supplement and report at the next ACF. 
 
ACTION: Valerie Watson, AJV-3, will speak with the proponent of this issue regarding the discussions held at the 

ACF and regarding maintenance of the data currently published. 
 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/14-01-276_Removal_Non_AK_Facility_Info_frm_AK_Sup.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 16 of 19 

 

14-01-277 Discontinuation of World Aeronautical Chart (WAC) 
 
Ron Haag, AJV-321, briefed this issue on behalf of FAA AeroNav Products, VFR Charting. Ron emphasized at the 
beginning of his briefing that the recommendation for the discontinuation of the WACs is only in the initial stages of 
consideration. Ron added that the purpose of bringing this topic to the ACF is to gather user input.  
 
Ron outlined the reasons the FAA is investigating the possibility of discontinuing the publication of the WAC, 
including; the availability of digital Visual Charts, the expanding use of devices such as iPads and Electronic Flight 
Bags, the loss of NGA as key purchaser, and an overall decline in printed chart subscribers. Ron commented that the 
decline in the paper sales of the WAC charts has been more rapid than other FAA Charting products. Ron also stated 
that there is duplicate coverage on the Sectional Charts in all but a very limited area. The proposal is to discontinue 
the WACs, except where obligated by international agreement, or in areas that do not have sufficient alternate VFR 
(Sectional) coverage. Ron then opened the floor to user comments. 
 
John Kernaghan, NBAA, commented that FAR Part 135 operators are required to have Visual charts in the cockpit 
and he felt that some pilots choose to carry the WACs because a single WAC covers a great deal more geographical 
area than a Sectional chart. He said he will poll some of NBAA‘s membership to determine the level of demand for 
the WACs. 
 
George Sempeles, AOV-310, stated that the WACs are a required product by ICAO and the US would have to file a 
difference if they are discontinued.  
 
John Moore, Jeppesen, asked about the international agreements and the requirements of those agreements. Ron 
responded that his office is looking into that issue. John then stated that despite the decline in sales, there are still a 
sizable number of users that still purchase the WACs. He suggested that the FAA try to determine who those users 
are and if the available alternatives would be suitable for those users.  
 
Melissa McCaffrey, AOPA, commented that many pilots may be using the WACs for flight planning purposes. She 
asked if there would be a public comment period. Ron responded that yes, there would be outreach and time for 
public comment. 
 
Bruce McGray, AFS-410, suggested that the original intent of the WACs be reviewed to ensure that the original 
requirements are being met by other products.  Bruce also inquired as to whether the proposal would be open to 
formal comment. Ron reiterated that yes, a public comment period would be provided. 
 
Jay Jackson, AJV-222, suggested that coverage of the sectional charts could be expanded to meet the geographical 
requirements. Ron responded that expansion of the Sectional chart coverage would probably prove cost prohibitive.  
 
Valerie Watson, AJV-3, asked Melissa if she could poll the AOPA membership to gather feedback on the impacts of 
discontinuing the WACs. Melissa responded that she would coordinate with Ron and begin doing some regional 
outreach. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Ron Haag, AJV-321, will take the comments received at the ACF back to the VFR charting team 

management, will seek a venue for public comment and will report back at the next ACF. 
 
ACTION: Melissa McCaffrey, AOPA, will coordinate with Ron Haag, AJV-321, to begin to gather feedback from the 

AOPA membership and report back at the next ACF. 
 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/14-01-277_Removal_of_WACs.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01-RD277_Discontinuation_of_WACs.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 17 of 19 

 

14-01-278 Alaska Designated Common Traffic Advisory Frequency Area Chart Depictions 
 
Mike Yorke, AAL-03, presented this issue. Mike described several mid-air collisions and near mid-air collisions that 
have occurred in Alaska. The findings of the NTSB were that there was inadequate visual lookout contributed to by a 
lack of standardization of CTAF frequencies. As a result, a government/industry working group was formed to come 
up with recommendations reduce the confusion regarding overlapping CTAF areas with different frequencies.  
 
One of the recommendations generated by the Working Group is the establishment of designated CTAF area 
boundaries. The CTAF areas are already set to be published graphically in the Special Notices section of the Alaska 
Supplement. The working group is proposing a change to charting convention to add the symbology for CTAF area 
boundaries to Visual Charts.  
 
John Moore, Jeppesen, stated that once these areas are charted for Alaska, this concept may be desired elsewhere. 
John stated that the FAA should look carefully at the impacts of depicting CTAF areas on visual charts. Mike agreed 
that if this concept works well, it is likely that Alaska will ask for more of these areas to be charted in the future. 
Valerie stated that the charting offices would not want to see this concept expand into the lower 48. She stressed 
that the charting specifications that would allow these boundaries on the Alaskan charts would also apply to the 
entire chart series.  
 
Ron Haag, AJV-321, reported that the May 29, 2014, Juneau Sectional chart will include the addition of CTAF 
frequencies associated with airports. Ron inquired if this could be a solution to the problem.  
 
Mike stated that he still thinks that adding boundary lines to the chart to define the parameters of the areas is of 
greater value. Adding a CTAF boundary line is the only way the pilot will know where the frequency changeover is. 
Ron stated that adding CTAF boundary lines to the sectional may not be very useful to pilots if the areas are too 
small to be shown clearly on the chart. He suggested the possibility of a separate inset that would be available 
digitally.  
 
Melissa McCaffrey, AOPA, commented that there is value in showing this information on an inset similar to the 
Juneau High Density Traffic Area inset. Ron stated that there is not enough room on the Anchorage Section or TAC 
charts to place an inset. He stated that the Anchorage enroute inset currently does not cover enough space to cover 
these areas. Ron will look into the possibility of adjusting this inset coverage.  
 
George Sempeles, AOV-310, recommended that a note could be placed on the sectional to direct pilots to a separate 
publication. Valerie spoke in support of this notion & voiced that consideration should be given to directing users via 
chart notes to the detailed CTAF Area graphics in the Alaska Supplement or insets, and warned that the addition of 
linework in small-scale areas on Sectional charts will likely compromise the portrayal of existing data. Mike agreed 
that he would like to see a note on the chart. 
 
Melissa suggested that Ron be made part of the working group for this issue. Ron stated that there are a range of 
possible solutions that he will investigate and he will coordinate with Mike and the working group to address this 
issue.  
 
STATUS: OPEN 
 
ACTION: Ron Haag, AJV-321, will coordinate with Mike Yorke, AAL-03, to investigate the possible solutions 

discussed, develop prototype graphics and report at the next ACF. 
 
 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/14-01-278_AK_Designated_Common_Traffic_Advisory_Freq_Area_Chart_Depictions.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01-RD278-AK_Designated_CTAF_Chart_Depictions.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 18 of 19 

 

14-01-279 Naming of FAA Certified, Nationally Disseminated AWOS-3 Systems on Private Use Airports 
 
Regina Sabatini, AJV-22, summarized the topic. Regina stated that there has been an increase in FAA-certified 
AWOS-3 systems that are located on private-use airports. As a result, questions have arisen regarding to how those 
weather systems should be identified, covered by NOTAM and depicted on aeronautical charts. 
 
Currently, private-use airports are assigned four character identifiers and public-use airports are assigned three 
character identifiers. Typically when an AWOS is located on an airport, the identifier matches the airport identifier. 
For AWOS systems located on private airports, however, there are limits in the usefulness in using a matching four 
character identifier. The identifier of an AWOS on a private airport would not be compatible with METARs and 
NOTAMS. Independent Stand-alone weather systems that are not associated with an airport are currently assigned 
three character identifiers. Regina proposed two solutions to the problem and solicited for feedback from the group;  
 

1. Reassign the private use airport a three character FAA location identifier and then assign that same 
identifier to the weather system located on airport. 

2. Assign a three character FAA identifier to the weather system that is independent of the four character 
private use airport identifier and treat the weather system as a standalone facility. 

 
Valerie Watson, AVJ-3, indicated that she supports proposal number 2, however she still saw outstanding issues with 
it. There is currently no place in NASR to differentiate whether an automated weather system is FAA-certified and 
available for private or public use. Valerie stated that there is a concern that some of the privately owned AWOS 
systems on private airports have not been databased. Once theses privately owned AWOS systems have been 
databased, how will the charting office know which ones are certified and available for public use? Regina 
responded that only certified, public use facilities will be databased in the ASOS/AWOS file of NASR and made 
available for charting.  
 
John Moore, Jeppesen, asked if there could be instances where a public instrument approach procedure refers to an 
AWOS on a private airport. Brad Rush, AJV-3, stated that today, the remote weather systems utilized on IAPs are 
located at public-use airports and are referred to by name only. Valerie stated that if, in the future, these stand-
alone AWOS systems were utilized on IAPs, the chart could refer to the AWOS system only and not make reference 
to the private airport. She stated that we may need to consider identifying these systems by ident, as the private-use 
airport on which they are situated may not be published.  
 
Ted Thompson, Jeppesen, asked how the AWOS will be referred to and how pilots will know where the AWOS is 
located. Regina stated that all of these weather systems would be contained in the ASOS/AWOS file of NASR and 
would contain positional information (Latitude/Longitude) and a location identifier. After some discussion, it was 
concluded by the group that all AWOS should be published with both name and identifier on the charts and when 
referenced in a note (as in a remote weather source on an IAP). 
 
Cathy Riccio, AJV-22, indicated that in her conversations with Rick Funkhouser, AJV-22, he indicated that he would 
like to assign a four character private-use identifier to the AWOS systems located on private-use airports so that the 
airport and the weather system could be tied by the same location identifier. Regina stated that this option was 
investigated but was not viable because it is not compatible with METAR transmission or NOTAM publication, both 
requirements for nationally-disseminated, public-use weather systems. 
 
Lynette Jameson, AJR-B1 , expressed her support for proposal number two, referencing the compatibility with the 
NOTAM system.  
 
Regina concluded that the consensus of the group supports proposal number two. She stated that her next step will 
be to take that option through the Safety Risk Management process. 
 
STATUS: OPEN 

http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/RDs/14-01-279_Naming_of_AWOS_at_PR_APT.pdf
http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/media/Presentations/14-01-RD279_AWOS_IDENT_Assignment_debate.pdf


ACF – CG 14-01 Minutes  Page 19 of 19 

 

 
ACTION: Regina Sabatini, AJV-22, will proceed with the concept of assigning a three character identifier to AWOS 

systems on private use airports and will report back at the next ACF. 
 
ACTION: Valerie Watson, AJV-3, will draft a charting specification change to support charting stand-alone 

ASOS/AWOS (which includes those located on private-use airports) with both the name and the 
identifier on Visual & Enroute charts.  

 
ACTION: Brad Rush, AJV-3, will work with AFS-420 to determine if policy should be changed to include 

ASOS/AWOS location IDs in remote weather system notes on IAPs. 
 
 
VIII. Closing Remarks 
 

Valerie Watson, AJV-3, thanked everyone for their participation and voiced special appreciation to Al Herndon and 
MITRE for hosting the ACF.  
 
Notices of the official minutes will be announced via email and provided via the Internet. The two website addresses 
(CG and IPG) are provided below (Please note the changes in the Charting Groups URL and update your browsers 
book marks accordingly):  
 

 Charting Group - http://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/acf/  

 Instrument Procedures Group - 
http://www.faa.gov/about/office_org/headquarters_offices/avs/offices/afs/afs400/afs420/acfipg/  

 
Please note the attached Office of Primary Responsibility (OPR) listing for action items. It is requested that all OPRs 
be prepared to provide verbal input at the next Forum or provide the Chair, Valerie Watson (with an information 
copy to Alex Rushton, Contract Support), a written status update. These status reports will be used to compile the 
minutes of the meeting and will serve as a documented statement of your presentation.  
 
Appreciation to Jennifer Hendi, AJV-3 for recording the Minutes, to Steve VanCamp, Contract Support to AFS-420, 
for presentation assistance, and to Alex Rushton, Contract Support to AJV-3, for conference support pre- and post-
conference.  
 

IX. Next Meeting 
 
ACF 14-02 is scheduled to be held on October 28-30, 2014, hosted by Innovative Solutions International at 
Pragmatics, Inc. corporate headquarters in Reston, VA. 
 
ACF 15-01 is tentatively scheduled to be held on April 28-30, 2015, hosted by ALPA in Herndon, VA. 
 
ACF 15-02 is scheduled to be held on October 27-29, 2015, hosted by Lockheed Martin at their Global Vision Center, 
located in Crystal City, VA. 
 

X. Attachments 
 

a. 14-01 Attendee Roster 
b. Office of Primary Responsibility (OPR) 

 





Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail
Abbott, Colby FAA/AJR-33 202-267-8783 colby.abbott@faa.gov
Abbott, Deke FAA/AFS-220 202-267-8266 deke.abbott@faa.gov
Abbott, Kathy FAA/AIR-100 202-267-7192 kathy.abbott@faa.gov
Adams,Martin FAA/AJE-37 202-493-4799 martin.w.adams@faa.gov


Agarwal, Ravin Continental Airlines 713-324-5110 ravin.agarwal@coair.com
x Allen, Kevin American Airlines 480-693-4637 Kevin.Allen@aa.com


Amisano, Richard USAF 301-981-4259 richard.amisano@afncr.af.mil


x Arrighi, Jim AJV-14 PBN Integ. 202-267-8837 james.arrighi@faa.gov
Atlagovich, Connie FAA-ZOB ARTCC 440-774-0408 connie.atlagovich@faa.gov


Ball, Allan NetJets 614-239-4873 ball@netjets.com
Barnett, Tracy Emirates Airlines tabarnett@gmail.com
Baumhardt, Brent NGA brent.m.baumhardt@nga.mil
Baum, Chris ALPA Chris.Baum@alpa.org
Beaudry, Jacques SIGNAV 405-853-0508 jbeaudry@signav.ca
Becker, Hal AOPA 540-729-5968 hal.becker@att.net
Beddoe, David Intergraph Gov Solutions 703-264-5616 david.beddoe@intergraphgovsolutions.com


x Belk, John FAA/AJV-14 202-267-8730 john.belkin@faa.gov


Bergner, Steve NBAA 845-583-5152 steve.bergner@gmail.com


Berry, Ron SAIC/AFS-410 202-285-4856 ronald.ctr.berry@faa.gov


Blair, John FAA/AFS-410 202-385-4314 john.blair@faa.gov
Blake, Michael NATCA 603-218-9747 mblake@natca.net


x Bland, George USAF AFFSA 405-582-5010 george.bland@us.af.mil


Blank, Art FAA/AJT-2A3 202-385-8599 art.blank@faa.gov


Boll, Richard NBAA 316-655-8856 richard.boll@sbcglobal.net


Bonanni, Robert FAA 202-267-8761 robert.bonanni@faa.gov
Botko,Craig FAA/AFS-220 202-267-4793 craig.botko@faa.gov
Boyce, Grady Delta AirLines 404-714-3237 grady.boyce@delta.com


Boynton, Michael NGA michael.g.boynton@nga.mil
Brackin, John FAA/AFS-240 202-267-4129 jon.k.brackin@faa.gov
Bradshaw, David FAA/AJV-24 540-422-4770 david.bradshaw@faa.gov


x Bridges, Kevin FAA/Aircraft Certification 202-385-4627 kevin.bridges@faa.gov


x Broman, Steve FAA/NFDC 202-267-6359 steven.broman@faa.gov


Brown, Mike FAA/AAS-300 202-267-8526 michael.w.brown@faa.gov
Brumback, Ronald NGA ronald.e.brumback@nga.mil
Bryan, Dale Veracity Eng (AJP671) 202-243-9516 dale.bryan@veracity-eng.com


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


Burns, Andrew FAA/AFS-400 202-395-4794 andrew.ctr.burns@faa.gov


Butghbabu, Abhizna MIT 848-219-7999 abhiznab@mit.edu
Cabler, Hank FAA/AFS-430 202-385-4622 hank.cabler@faa.gov


x Carlson, Bob FAA/AJV-322 301-427-5134 robert.d.carlson@faa.gov


Carper, Tim FAA/Nav Prog - JVS (CTR) 202-493-4592 tim.ctr.carper@faa.gov


Carrigan, Tom FAA/AJV-3B (CTR) 301-427-5146 thomas.ctr.carrigan@faa.gov
Carty, Robert FAA/AFS-4 202-267-7676 robert.carty@faa.gov


x Cato, Mark ALPA 703-689-4189 mark.cato@alpa.org


Chandra, Divya USDOT Volpe Center 617-494-3882 divya.chandra@dot.gov
x Christian, Lance NGA/MSRF 571-557-3870 lance.d.christian@nga.mil
x Christianson, Kel FAA/AFS-470 202-267-8838 kel.christianson@faa.gov


Church, Gary AMA 703-518-9923 gary.church@avmgt.com
Clayton, Michael AFFSA/A3AP 405-739-9542 michael.r.clayton@tinker.af.mil


x Collins, John General Aviation Pilot 704-576-3561 johncollins@carolina.rr.com
Combs, Todd FAA-AeroNav Products 301-427-4839 todd.m.combs@faa.gov


Comstock, Kevin ALPA 703-689-4176 kevin.comstock@alpa.org
x Connell, Robert FAA/AJV-14 202-267-4642 robert.connell@faa.gov


Connolly, Timothy Capital Airspace Group 703-256-2485 tim.connolly@capitolairspace.com
Connor, Maurice FAA/CTR/AJR-36 202-267-9255 mike.ctr.connor@faa.gov
Copeland, Debbie FAA/ATO-W AVN 301-713-2631 deborah.l.copeland@faa.gov
Copeland, Guy FAA VFR Charting Team 301-427-5499 guy.copeland@faa.gov


Craig, Gary ASAP 724-742-4777 gtcraig@asapinc.net
Cramer, Mike MITRE CAASD 616-296-9210 mcramer@mitre.org


x Criswell, Chris FAA/AJV-22 202-267-9302 christopher.criswell@faa.gov
x Cureton, Lisa FAA/AJV-14 202-267-8823 lisa.cureton@faa.gov


Davis, Bob FAA/AFS-220 202-267-7579 robert.davis@faa.gov
Davis, Curtis FAA/AJV-21 202-267-7755 curtis.davis@faa.gov


Davis, Edwards FAA/AJW-375 301-427-4780 edward.e.davis@faa.gov


Deuvall, Jim CAVU Companies 315-264-2288 jim.deuvall@cavucompanies.com
DeAngelis, Randy FAA/AFS-400 (contractor) 202-385-4875 randy.ctr.deangelis@faa.gov


DeVito, Joe JetBlue 718-709-2264 joseph.devito@jetblue.com
Duenas, Jerod Mitre/CAASD 703-983-1259 jduenas@mitre.org


x Dunham, Rick FAA/AFS-420 405-954-6633 rick.dunham@faa.gov
Dunson, Norman NGA norman.l.dunson@nga.mil
Dutch, Keith FAA/AJE-36 202-385-8459 keith.dutch@faa.gov







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


Edsall, Douglas USAASA 703-806-4417 douglas.m.edsall.civ@mail.mil


Eliel, Erik Alaska Airlines erikeliel@earthlink.net
Enders, Charles FAA/AFS-220 202-493-1422 charles.j.enders@faa.gov
Ernesto, Etienne FAA/Nav Prog 202-309-2965 ernesto.etienne@faa.gov


Eure, Paul FAA/AJE-31 202-385-8451 paul.eure@faa.gov
Farro, Scott FAA, NATCA 801-325-9675 scottfarrow@comcast.net


Fecht, Rick FAA/AJV-321 301-427-4929 richard.f.fecht@faa.gov
Fee, James FAA/AVP-200 202-493-4260 james.fee@faa.gov


x Fenwick, Joshua AeroNavData, Inc. 618-281-8986 josh@aeronavdata.com


x Ference, Kevin MITRE 703-983-9709 kference@mitre.org


x Fiske, Gary FAA/AJV-8 202-267-3156 gary.m.fiske@faa.gov
Flood, Frank Air Canada-ACPA 519-9429014 frank.flood@aircanada.ca
Florio, Joseph FAA/AOV-330 202-493-5565 joe.florio@faa.gov


Ford, JoAnn FAA/AJM-324 202-493-4704 joann.y.ford@faa.gov
Formosa, Jeff MITRE 703-883-6937 jformosa@mitre.org
Foster, Mike Army Aeronautical 703-806-4869 james.m.foster1@us.army.mil


Frank, Mike FAA/AFS-52 202-385-8447 mike.frank@faa.gov
Frazier, Steve Advanced Aircrew Academy 303-726-7423 jfrazier@aircrewacademy.com


x Fredricks, Eric FAA/AJV-823 202-385-8438 eric.fredricks@faa.gov


Freed, Eric FAA/ATO-W AVN 301-713-2944 x106 eric.freed@faa.gov
Frenz, Bill MITRE 703-983-7607 wfrenz@mitre.org


Funk, Adrienne FAA/AJR -32 202-267-9282 adrienne.l.funk@faa.gov
Funkhouser, Rick FAA/AJT-321 202-267-9273 rick.funkhouser@faa.gov
Galbraith, Rob United Flight Operations 281-772-3255 rob.galbraith@united.com


Gale, John NBAA 201-323-3598 john.gale@honeywell.com


Gallant, Paul FAA/AJV-11 202-267-9361 paul.gallant@faa.gov
Geiser, William FAA/AJW-334 405-954-1775 william.r.geiser@faa.gov


Gillespie, Kendall USAF - AFFSA/A30 405-548-5711 kendall.gillespie@tinker.af.mil


Girard, Daniel Canada DND 204-883-2700 x5012 girard.jmd@forces.gc.ca
Girbert, Mike Mitre/CAASD 703-983-5190 fgirbert@mitre.org
Gittleman, Marc ALPA 571-723-7524 marc.gittleman@alpa.org


Gold, Russell FAA/AJV-14 703-717-3699 russell.gold@faa.gov


Goldsmith, Andrew E FAA/AV-322 301-427-5735 andrew.e.goldsmith@faa.gov


Goodlin, Ted FAA/AJR15-D01 303-342-1563 ted.goodlin@faa.gov


x Goodson, Robert L NGA FLIP/Charts 571-558-1714 robert.l.goodson@nga.mil







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


Gorman, Jeffrey FAA/AFS-460 405-954-5774 jeffrey.c.gorman@faa.gov


Graham, Jim Flight Safety Intl 972-534-3200 jimmy.graham@flightsafety.com
x Graham, Ron Transport Canada 613-993-5522 ron.graham@tc.gc.ca


Grant, Jim FAA/AJW-37 301-713-2631 jim.grant@faa.gov
Graybill, John FAA/ AJV-22 301-713-2928 john.graybill@faa.gov


x Grayhem, Rebecca USDOT Volpe Center 617-494-2632 rebecca.grayhem@dot.gov


Gunderson, Don RWSL PO 262-893-6535 donald.gunderson@saic.com
x Haag, Ron FAA / AJV-321 301-427-4901 ronald.s.haag@faa.gov


Hamilton, Danny FAA/AFS-460 405-954-9977 danny.e.hamilton@faa.gov
Hannah, Paul MDA Systems 706-364-5492 phannah@flightopseng.com


Hansen, Randy EAA 888-322-4636 x6522 govt@eaa.org


Harris, Darren PSA Airlines 919-656-4474 darrenharris@psaairlines.net


Hayes, Alan FAA/ASU 202-267-7357 alan.hayes@faa.gov
x Hendi, Jennifer FAA/AJV-3B 301-427-4816 jennifer.l.hendi@faa.gov


Henegar, Marc Alaska Airlines 714-273-9673 marc.henegar@alaskaair.com
x Herndon, Al Mitre/CAASD 703-983-6465 aherndon@mitre.org
x Higgins, Doug Jeppesen 303-328-4446 doug.higgins@jeppesen.com


Hilbert, Michael FAA/AJR-37 202-385-4832 michael.hilbert@faa.gov
x Hill, Chris Delta Air Lines 404-715-1929 Christopher.W.Hill@delta.com


Hill, Ron United Flight Operations 832-445-4868 ronthill2@mac.com


Hill, Terry AirTran Airways 407-318-5531 terry.hill@airtran.com


Hills, Larry FedEx 901-224-5352 larry.hills@fedex.com
Hinson, Chris MITRE 703-983-4578 chinson@MITRE.org
Hood, JD ATC Liason Pilot (Horizon) 503-970-6859 jd.hood@horizonair.com
Hope, Chris FAA, AFS-410 202-385-4529 chris.hope@faa.gov


Houghton, Adam Foreflight adam@foreflight.com
Hunnicutt, EC FAA/ 202-618-5625 ec.ctr.hunnicutt@faa.gov
Ingram, Mark ALPA-CHIPS 417-442-7231 markt@mv.com


x Jackson, Jay FAA/AJV-2220 301-427-5121 joseph.a.jackson@faa.gov
x Jamison, Lynette FAA/AJR-B1 540-422-4761 lynette.m.jamison@faa.gov


Jerdan, Scott FAA/ATO-W AVN 301-713-2817 richard.s.jerdan@faa.gov
Jermyn, Kyle Jeppesen 303-328-6298 kyle.jermyn@jeppesen.com
Johnson, Coby FAA/AFS-410 202-385-4621 coby.johnson@faa.gov


Jones, Chris FAA/AFS-410 202-385-4570 christopher.p-ctr.jones@faa.gov


Jones, Kevin Southwest Airlines klj@mac.com







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


Jonker, Reuben NAVCANADA 905-612-5725 reuben.jonker@navcanada.ca
Kagehiro, Richard FAA/AJE-31 202-267-8364 richard.kagehiro@faa.gov
Kelly, Dennis NATCA 484-767-2548 dennis.kelly@natca.net


Kenton, Jack SCAUWG 310-322-8098 jack.kenton@calpilots.org
x Kernaghan, John NBAA 610-996-2977 jkernagh@its.jnj.com


Kimbrough, Ron FAA/AFS-470 202-385-4319 ron.kimbrough@faa.gov


King, Terry FAA/AFS-410 202-385-4588 terry.king@faa.gov


Kinney, Justin USN 240-271-1753 justin.kinney@faa.gov


Knight, Jim FAA/ AVP-100 202-493-5630 james.knight@faa.gov


Knopp, Ken FAA/AJP-6430 609-485-5693 ken.knopp@faa.gov
Kramer, Tom AOPA 301-695-2064 tom.kramer@aopa.org
Krause, Alex AFFSA / A3OT 405-734-7073 alex.krause@us.af.mil


x Kuhnhenn, Juergen Lufthansa (Lido) 41-44-828 6546 juergen.kuhnhenn@LHSystems.com
Lamb, James FAASTEAM 316-941-1247 james.lamb@faa.gov


x Lamond, Robert NBAA 202-783-9255 rlamond@nbaa.org
Langert, Ken FAA/AAS-300 202-493-4529 kenneth.langert@faa.gov
Laroche, Pierre Transport Canada 613-991-9927 pierre.laroche@tc.gc.ca 
Leary, William RWSL PO - FAA Contractor 


(Constellation Aviation 
Solutions)


860-324-2855 bleary@constellation.aero


Lehman, Daniel USN 843-218-5282 dan.lehman@navy.mil


Lentini, Brian FAA ATL TRACON 678-364-6150 brian.lentini@faa.gov


Lepine, Paul FAA/AFS-260 202-267-3205 paul.lepine@faa.gov


Lewis, Ray U.S. Navy 703-614-2641 ray.lewis@navy.mil


Lintzginich, Joe FAA/AFS-410 (Contractor) 314-994-1766 joe@atsi.aero


Loeffel, Hanspeter Lufthansa Systems 19013886354 hanspeter.loeffel@lhsystems.com


x Lombard, Kolie FAA/AFS-410/ISI 202-385-4592 kolie.ctr.lombard@faa.gov
x Loney, Tom Canadian Air Force 204-833-2500 x5512 tom.loney@forces.gc.ca
x Lounsbury, Lincoln Triumph-Enterprises 703-517-2235 lincoln.ctr.lounsbury@faa.gov


Lynch, Phil Avidyne Corporation 781-402-7413 plynch@avidyne.com 
x Mackie, Thomas Woolpert Inc. 937-531-1877 thomas.mackie@woolpert.com


Majauskas, Catherine FAA/AFS-470 202-385-4725 catherine.majauskas@faa.gov
Majette, Langston FAA/AeroNav Products 301-427-4917 langston.r.majette@faa.gov


x Maliszewski, Allison FAA/AeroNav Products 301-427-4788 allison.m.maliszewski@faa.gov


Marek, Doug FAA/AJT-24 202-385-8742 doug.marek@faa.gov







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


Martin, Deborah Transport Canada 613-990-3708 deborah.martin@tc.gc.ca
Massimini, Vince MITRE 703-883-5893 svm@mitre.org
Maxwell, Roy Delta Air Lines 404-715-7231 roy.maxwell@delta.com
Mayhew, Richard FAA/AJR-32 202-267-9329 richard.p.mayhew@faa.gov
Maynard, William FAA 301-344-6309 william.m.maynard@faa.gov


x McCaffrey, Melissa AOPA 301-695-2228 melissa.mccaffrey@aopa.org


McCurdy, Eric NGA 314-676-0710 eric.d.mccurdy@nga.mil
x McGinnis, Mike American A/L AP 214-727-9310 msm1976@gmail.com
x McGray, Bruce FAA/AFS-410 202-385-4725 bruce.mcgray@faa.gov


McGrath, Maura FAA/AJW-163 202-267-7856 maura.mcgrath@faa.gov
McKee, Kyle FAA/AJV-14 202-385-4671 kyle.mckee@faa.gov
McLellan, Chris FAA/AFS-240 202-467-4363 christopher.mclellan@faa.gov
McMullin, Gary Southwest Airlines 214-695-1685 gary.mcmullin@wnco.com
McNerney, Mike FAA/AAS-100 202-267-8770 mike.mcnerney@faa.gov
Meek, Jordan Lido 41 44 828 6976 jordan.meek@lhsystems.com


x Mendez, Rowena AJM-324 202-267-4540 rowena.mendez@faa.gov
Milburn, Fred FAA/ATO-W AVN 301-713-2630 fred.milburn@faa.gov
Miller-Adams, Deborah FAA/AJM 202-493-4733 deborah.miller-adams@faa.gov


Mills, Dennis FAA/AFS-240 202-493-4901 dennis.mills@faa.gov
Mochty, Tom Woolpert Inc. 937-531-1492 tom.mochty@woolpert.com


x Moore, John Jeppesen 703-505-0672 john.moore@jeppesen.com


Myers, Robert FAA/ AFS-420 405-954-5357 robert.p.myers@faa.gov
x Nahlik, Justin NGA 571-557-8803 justin.m.nahlik@nga.mil


Newdeck, William FAA/AWA 301-427-4808 william.newdeck@faa.gov


Newton, David C.David.Newton@wnco.com
Nichols, Janet FAA, AFS-410 202-385-4530 janet.e.nichols@faa.gov


Nichols, Thomas FAA/ AFS-420 405-954-1171 thomas.j.nichols@faa.gov
Niles, Rick MITRE 703-983-7348 fniles@mitre.org
Norek, Gary FAA/AJV-11 202-267-9239 gary.a.norek@faa.gov
Ottobre, Randal DoD NOTAMS Office 412-378-9777 randal.ottobre@pentagon.af.mil


Ottinger, Randy US Parachute Assoc. 540-604-9740 randyo@uspa.org
Oudemans, Michael FAA/AJR-21 202-267-9296 michael.g.oudemans@faa.gov


Parish, Edie 202-267-8783 edie.parish@faa.gov
Parson, Susan FAA/AFS-1 202-267-9064 susan.parson@faa.gov


x Pavulaan, Harry FAA/ATO/AIM 301-427-5118 harry.pavulaan@faa.gov







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


Piche, Rick AIS NavCanada 613-563-5710 picher@navcanada.ca
Pioli, Pat AJV-3632 301-427-5153 patrick.pioli@faa.gov
Pittman, Justin Federal Airways & Airspace 321-777-1266 jj.pittman@gmail.com
Pittman, Clyde Federal Airways & Airspace 301-777-1266 airspace@airspaceusa.com
Ponchetti, Emmy Jeppesen 303-328-4880 emmy.ponchetti@jeppesen.com
Poplaski, Dan Jeppesen 303-328-4633 dan.poplaski@jeppesen.com
Powell, Dick FAA/ATO-R 202-267-9308 dick.powell@faa.gov
Powell, Gary FAA/AFS-402 202-385-4589 gary.l.powell@faa.gov
Pray, Gregory NFDC 202-267-9292 gregory.pray@faa.gov


Prichard, Lev APA (American AL) 214-739-2912 levprichard@bigsky.aero


Quezada, Rafael FAA/AOV-330 202-267-5190 rafael.d.quezada@faa.gov


Rahn, Nate FAA/AJV-3211 301-427-4908 nathan.j.rahn@faa.gov
Railsback, Paul Air Transport Assoc 202-626-4012 prailsback@airlines.org


x Ramirez, Dawn FAA/AJV-14 703-267-9056 dawn.m.ramirez@faa.gov


Rash, Suzette AFS-470 202-385-4319 suzette.rash@faa.gov
x Reed, Jolda AJV-W21 425-203-4535 jolda.reed@faa.gov


Reed, Mark ALPA 703-689-4231 mark.reed@alpa.org
x Renk, Ron United Airlines 281-553-6573 ron.renk@united.com


x Rhea, Terry FAA/Office of Airports 202-267-8757 terry.l.rhea@faa.gov


x Riccio, Catherine FAA/NFDC 571-244-0108 catherine.a.riccio@faa.gov


Rieketson, Mark Woolpert Inc. 904-315-5919 mark.ricketson@woolpert.com


Rivas, Pedro ALPA 770-461-0961 rivas1410@bellsouth.net
Roberts, Wally Aviation Consultant 949-498-3456 wally@wallyroberts.com
Robertson, Glen Air Canada 514-422-6917 glen.robertson@aircanada.ca
Rooks, Dan FAA AeroNav Products 301-427-4968 dan.rooks@faa.gov


Root, Rob Boeing Flt Ops Engineering 206-662-4405 robert.e.root@boeing.com


Ruple, Michael J. FAA-ZOB ARTCC 440-774-0539 michael.j.ruple@faa.gov
x Rush, Brad FAA/AJV-3B 405-954-0188 brad.w.rush@faa.gov


Rushton, Alex Lockheed Martin/AJV-3B 301-427-5186 alex.ctr.rushton@faa.gov
Russ, Philip FAA/AJI-154 202-385-4719 phillip.russ@faa.gov


Ryan, James FAA/AFS-200 202-267-7493 jim.ryan@faa.gov
Saenger, Philip SAIC 202-385-4331 philip.ctr.saenger@faa.gov


x Sabatini, Regina FAA/AIM 847-294-7792 regina.h.sabatini@faa.gov
Sanderson, Bill HAI 703-683-4646
Sawyer, Benjamin FAA/AJT-2B1 202-385-8607 benjamin.sawyer@faa.gov







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


x Schneider, Thomas FAA/AFS-420 405-954-5852 thomas.e.schneider@faa.gov
Schul, Chris Delta Air Lines christopher.schul@delta.com
Scott, Ed US Parachute Assn 540-604-9740 x325 escott@uspa.org
Scott, Mitch ATA/Continental 713-324-1786 mitch.scott@coair.com
Secretan, Eric FAA/ATO-W AVN 301-713-2631 eric.secretan@faa.gov


x Sempeles, George FAA/AOY-310 202-267-9290 george.p.sempeles@faa.gov
Severson, Marshall FAA/Alaska Flight Services 907-271-5891 marshall.g.severson@faa.gov
Shearon, Sherri FAA/AFS-450 405-954-8364 Sherri.Shearon@faa.gov
Shirer, Kevin Woolpert Inc. 480-707-3501 kevin.shirer@woolpert.com
Shorter, John NGA/PVA 314-263-4806 john.e.shorter@nga.mil
Shuford, Gene USN 703-608-0199 gene.shuford@navy.mil


Schutte, Richard NGA Richard.A.Schutte@nga.mil


Singletary, Ron FAA/AJT-28 202-385-8558 ron.singletary@faa.gov
Sims, Mark United AL Flt Stndrds 303-780-3657 william.sims@united.com
Slimko,Mark Zodiac Aerospace 856-241-8620 mark.slimko@zodiacaerospace.com 
Smith, Abigail FAA/AJV-3 abigail.smith@faa.gov
Smith, Lee Capitol Airspace 202-385-4625 lee@applied.aero


Smith, Tim FAA-ATO-ESC Ops Supp 404-305-5579 timothy.d.smith@faa.gov
Sokolowski, John FAA-AJT-2B1 202-385-6194 john.sokolowski@faa.gov


Sosnowich, Terry FAA/AJV-35 301-424-4812 terence.sosnowich@faa.gov


Steinbicker, Mark FAA/AFS-470 202-385-4613 mark.steinbicker@faa.gov
x Steinmetz, George FAA/AVP-220 202-267-9127 george.f.steinmetz@faa.gov


Stomborg, Michael Air Wisconsin 920-203-1493 michael.stromberg@airwis.com


Strutin, Benjamin ALPA - Compass 973-476-9896 ben.strutin@alpa.org


Swanick, Kurt A FAA/AFS-240 202-857-5754 kurt.swanick@faa.gov


Swierz, Greg FAA/AFS-410 (Contractor) 202-385-4161 gregory.ctr.swierz@faa.gov


Swigart, John FAA/AFS-470 202-385-4601 john.swigart@faa.gov
Taber, Bennet Dreamline Aviation LLC 925-980-3965 Sanfranben@aol.com
Tallman, Nick FAA/AJR-37 202-385-4679 Nicholas.j.tallman@faa.gov
Taylor, Lou Honeywell 763-957-4279 lou.taylor@honeywell.com


Teets, Cecil ASAP Inc 724-742-4777 cwteets@asapinc.net


x Thomas, Tamiska FAA/AJV-14 202-267-9113 tamisha.thomas@faa.gov


x Thompson, Ted Jeppesen 303-328-4456 ted.thompson@jeppesen.com
Torgerson, Anne AOPA 301-695-2203 anne.torgerson@aopa.org
Turke, Tony FAA/AOV-220 817-684-6820 anthony.j.turke@faa.gov







Particpant's Name Organization Phone E-mail


Aeronautical Charting Forum / CG & IPG                          
Contact List


A
ttended


x Van Camp, Steve FAA/AFS-420 (ISI) 405-954-5327 steve.ctr.vancamp@faa.gov


Vargas, Steve FAA/AJV-363 405-954-0695 steven.a.vargas@faa.gov
x Wagner, Rich Jeppesen 303-328-4447 rich.wagner@jeppesen.com


Wallin, Michael FAA/AJV-322 (301) 427-5133 michael.wallin@faa.gov
Walter, Andrew Jeppesen 303-328-6186 andrew.walter@jeppesen.com
Ward, Edward T. Southwest Airlines 214-792-1023 edward.ward@wnco.com
Ward, Ken FAA/AJW-911 (Contractor) 703-927-6243 kc3ye@aol.com


Wartofsky, David Potomac Airfield bigcheese@potomac-airfield.com


Washam, Mark FAA/AJT-2A3 (CTR) 202-385-8543 mark.ctr.washam@faa.gov


Waterman, Geoff NGA/PV 314-676-0588 geoffrey.d.waterman@nga.mil
x Watson, Valerie FAA/AJV-3B 301-427-5155 valerie.s.watson@faa.gov
x Webb, Mike FAA/AFS-420 202-267-8942 mike.webb@faa.gov
x Welch, Bryant FAA/AFS-410 202-385-4539 bryant.welch@faa.gov


Wentworth, Brandon Southwest Airlines 214-792-5451 brandon.wentworth@wnco.com


Wiegand, Skip FAA/AFS-820 202-267-7065 skip.wiegand@faa.gov
Wilkes, Ken FAA/AJV-352 301-427-4760 ken.wilkes@faa.gov
Williams, Bruce Bruce Air 206-283-2937 bruce@bruceair.com
Williams, Shun FAA/AOV-330 202-267-9725 shun.williams@faa.gov


Wisnieski, Mark FAA/AFS-410 202-385-4877 mark.ctr.wisniewski@faa.gov
Witucki, John FAA/AJV-14 202-385-4348 john.witucki@faa.gov


Wood, CDR Jason US Navy jason.m.wood@navy.mil


x Wood, Leah AeroNavData, Inc. 703-859-3073 lwood@aeronavdata.com


Wright, Richard HAI 703-683-4646 dick.wright@rotor.com
Yamamoto, Greg FAA/ATO-W AVN 301-713-2925 gregory.yamamoto@faa.gov


x Yorke, Mike FAA/AAL 907-271-5900 mike.yorke@faa.gov


x Zillig, Martin Lufthansa (LIDO)+D145 41-44-828-6561  martin.zillig@lhsystems.com


Total # of Attendees 64








Page 1 of 6 


 


ACF Charting Group Open Issues and OPR from Meeting 14-01 


OPR  Presentation, ACF Working Group, Project Report, or Issue Number & Title (Name) 
 
Required action 


   


AAL-03  14-01-278 Alaska Designated Common Traffic Advisory Frequency Area Chart Depictions (Yorke) 


 


Mike Yorke will coordinate with, Ron Haag, AJV-321, to investigate the possible solutions discussed, 


develop prototype graphics and report at the next ACF. 


 


AAS-100  Airport Surveying – GIS Program (McNerney) 


 


Dr. McNerney to provide update at next ACF. 


   


AFS-410  09-01-214 Low Visibility Operations/SMGCS (LVO/SMGCS) Taxi Charts (McGray) 


(Previously listed as 09-01-214 SMGCS Taxi Charts) 


 


Bruce McGray will coordinate with Valerie Watson, AJV-3, and the AFD Team regarding the publication 


of an AFD remark. 


 


09-01-214 Low Visibility Operations/SMGCS (LVO/SMGCS) Taxi Charts (McGray) 


(Previously listed as 09-01-214 SMGCS Taxi Charts) 


 


Bruce McGray will coordinate with Airports Engineering, AAS-100, on acquiring funding for the 


following:  loading of LVO/SMGCS attribute data into Airports GIS, and loading of procedural data and 


routing notes into a publicly disseminated database. 


 


09-01-214 Low Visibility Operations/SMGCS (LVO/SMGCS) Taxi Charts (McGray) 


(Previously listed as 09-01-214 SMGCS Taxi Charts) 


 


Bruce McGray will coordinate with the NOTAM office regarding adding language into the NOTAM Order 


for LVO/SMGSCS equipment outages. 


   


  13-02-273 Publication of Diverse Vector Areas (DVAs) (McGray) 


 


Bruce McGray will continue to work with AFS-420 on drafting guidance material on DVAs for insertion 


into the AIM and report back at the next ACF. 


 







Page 2 of 6 


 


 


AFS-420  ICAO/IFPP Committee Report (Webb) 


 


Mike Webb will provide an update at next ACF. 


 


05-02-179 Attention All Users Page (AAUP) for Simultaneous, Parallel RNAV Departures & PRM 


Approaches (Schneider) 


 


Tom Schneider and Kel Christianson, AFS-470, to report on progress of the publishing of the Orders 


 


13-01-266 Standard Depiction of Altitude Restrictions on Bottom, Top and Maintain Altitudes on 


Standard Arrival (STAR) and Standard Instrument Departures (SIDs) (Schneider) 


 


Tom Schneider will pull the single top altitude language from FAA Order 8260.46E and rewrite it to 


support the possibility of multiple top altitudes on Departures. 


   


13-02-270 Step Down Fix Chart Notes (Schneider) 


 


Tom Schneider will revise FAA Order 8260.19 and report at next ACF. 


   


13-02-273 Publication of Diverse Vector Areas (DVAs) (Schneider) 


 


Tom Schneider will report on updates to the Instrument Procedures Handbook. 


 


AFS-470  05-02-179 Attention All Users Page (AAUP) for Simultaneous, Parallel RNAV Departures & PRM 


Approaches (Christianson) 


 


Kel Christianson and Tom Schneider, AFS-420, to report on progress of the publishing of the Orders. 


 


13-01-264 Flight Path Angle (FPA) on STAR Charts with Published Vertical Profiles (Christianson) 


 


Kel Christianson to report on progress made by the PARC VNAV Action Team. 


 


13-02-270 Step Down Fix Chart Notes (Christianson) 


 


Kel Christianson will track requested AIM changes and report back at next ACF. 


 


AJM-324  Discontinuation of VOR Services  (Mendez) 


 


Rowena Mendez to provide an update at next ACF. 







Page 3 of 6 


 


 


AJV-3  07-01-195 Charting & AFD Information Re: Class E Surface Areas (Rush) 


 


Brad Rush will contact AJV-11 to elevate this issue to a higher FAA management level and report at the 


next ACF. 


 


07-01-195 Charting & AFD Information Re: Class E Surface Areas (Watson) 


 


Valerie Watson will contact Paul Gallant and Paul Eure, AJV-11, to try to get this issue moving forward 


and will report at the next ACF. 


 


13-01-260 Inclusion of Metering Frequency, 133.57, to MSP Airport Diagram – FAA AL 264 (Watson) 


 


Valerie Watson will report on the status of the publication of Metering Frequencies on Airport Diagrams 


at the next ACF. 


 


13-01-261 Alaska Ground Based Transceivers (GBT) Locations (Watson) 


 


Valerie Watson will continue to attempt to obtain the release of ADS-B tower locations for publication 


in NASR so that 3rd party vendors would have access to them. 


 


13-01-266 Standard Depiction of Altitude Restrictions on Bottom, Top and Maintain Altitudes on 


Standard Arrival (STAR) and Standard Instrument Departures (SIDs) (Watson) 


 


Valerie Watson will create prototypes for the depiction of multiple top altitudes on Departures. 


 


13-01-266 Standard Depiction of Altitude Restrictions on Bottom, Top and Maintain Altitudes on 


Standard Arrival (STAR) and Standard Instrument Departures (SIDs) (Watson) 


 


Valerie Watson to draft an IACC Requirement Document for the publishing of top altitudes for 


Departures. 


 


14-01-276 Removal of Non-Alaska Facility Information from Alaska Supplement (Watson) 


 


Valerie Watson will speak with the proponent of this issue regarding the discussions held at the ACF and 


regarding maintenance of the data currently published. 


 


14-01-279 Naming of FAA Certified, National Disseminated AWOS-3 Systems on Private Use Airports 


(Watson) 


 


Valerie Watson will draft a charting specification change to support charting stand-alone ASOS/AWOS 


(which includes those located on private-use airports) with both the name and the identifier on Visual & 


Enroute charts. 


 


 







Page 4 of 6 


 


 


AJV-3 


(Cont.) 


 14-01-279 Naming of FAA Certified, National Disseminated AWOS-3 Systems on Private Use Airports 


(Rush) 


 


Brad Rush will work with AFS-420 to determine if policy should be changed to include ASOS/AWOS 


location IDs in remote weather system notes on IAP. 


 


AJV-11  07-01-195 Charting & AFD Information Regarding Class E Surface Areas (Gallant) 


 


Paul Gallant will provide an update at the next ACF. 


   


AJV-22  11-01-238 Aerobatic Area Symbols on VFR Sectional Charts (Criswell) 


 


Chris Criswell will continue to work with AFS-800 to establish a list of current Aerobatic Areas and to 


establish publication/charting criteria for these areas. 


 


13-01-262 Airport Facility Directory (AFD) Depiction of Traffic Pattern Altitudes (Criswell) 


 


Chris Criswell will report on the progress of populating all traffic pattern altitudes at the next ACF. 


 


14-01-279 Naming of FAA Certified, National Disseminated AWOS-3 Systems on Private Use Airports 


(Sabatini) 


 


Regina Sabatini will proceed with the concept of assigning a three character identifier to AWOS systems 


on private use airports and will report back at the next ACF. 


 


AJV-121  PBN Implementation Process Order 7100.41 (Ramirez) 


 


Dawn Ramirez will provide an update at the next ACF. 


 


AJV-141  13-01-266 Standard Depiction of Altitude Restrictions on Bottom, Top and Maintain Altitudes on 


Standard Arrival (STAR) and Standard Instrument Departures (SIDs)(Arrighi) 


 


Jim Arrighi will provide an update on the progress of the transfer of FAA Order JO 7100.9 to AFS-400. 


   


AJV-321 


 


 


 


 


 14-01-274 Solar Power Plant Ocular Hazard Symbol on Aeronautical Charts (Hagg) 


 


Ron Haag will work with the Western Service Area Operations Support Group to pursue the charting of 


these areas a landmark object or area symbol with identifying text. 


 


14-01-277 Discontinuation of World Aeronautic Chart (WAC) (Hagg) 


 


Ron Haag  will take the comments received at the ACF back to the VFR charting team management, will 


seek a venue for public comment and will report back at the next ACF. 


 







Page 5 of 6 


 


AJV-321 


(Cont.) 


 14-01-277 Discontinuation of World Aeronautic Chart (WAC) (Haag) 


 


Ron Haag will coordinate with Melissa McCaffrey, AOPA, to begin to gather feedback from the AOPA 


membership and report back at the next ACF. 


 


14-01-278 Alaska Designated Common Traffic Advisory Frequency Area Chart Depictions (Haag) 


 


Ron Haag will coordinate with Mike Yorke, AAL-03, to investigate the possible solutions discussed, 


develop prototype graphics and report at the next ACF. 


 


AJV-322  13-01-261 Alaska Ground Based Transceivers (GBT) Locations (Carslon) 


 


Bob Carlson will contact the Alaska and Western Regional Offices to see if they wish to provide 


additional print-ready ADS-B coverage graphics at 5,000 and 10,000 foot flight levels to be published in 


the Supplement Alaska. 


 


AJV-822  13-01-267 Addition of ATC Radar Telephone Numbers in FAA A/FD (Fiske) 


 


Gary Fiske will work to get a consolidated ATC response and report at the next ACF. 


 


13-01-268 Making Alternate Missed Approach Text Accessible to ATC (Fiske) 


 


Gary Fiske and Rich Boll, NBAA, will discuss the issue offline and report at the next ACF. 


 


13-01-268 Making Alternate Missed Approach Text Accessible to ATC (Fiske) 


 


Gary Fiske will work to get a consolidated ATC response and report at the next ACF. 


 


14-01-275 Charting Speed Limited Areas on Instrument Approach Plates (Fiske) 


 


Gary Fiske will update the group on the status of the change to the rule. 


 


14-01-275 Charting Speed Limited Areas on Instrument Approach Plates (Fiske) 


 


Gary Fiske will contact SOCAL regarding these issues and the discussion at the ACF and report back to 


the group. 







Page 6 of 6 


 


 


AOPA  14-01-274 Solar Power Plant Ocular Hazard Symbol on Aeronautical Charts (McCaffrey) 


 


Melissa McCaffrey will gather more information from pilots in Southern California and will report back 


on the scope of the problem. 


 


14-01-276 Removal of Non-Alaska Facility Information from Alaska Supplement (McCaffrey) 


 


Melissa McCaffrey will speak with the AOPA membership regarding the possible removal of non-Alaska 


information from the Alaska Supplement and report at the next ACF. 


 


14-01-277 Discontinuation of World Aeronautic Chart (WAC) (McCaffrey) 


 


Melissa McCaffrey will coordinate with Ron Haag, AJV-321, to begin to gather feedback from the AOPA 


membership and report back at the next ACF. 


 


NBAA  13-01-268 Making Alternate Missed Approach Text Accessible to ATC (Boll) 


 


Rich Boll and Gary Fiske, AJV-822, will discuss the issue offline and report at the next ACF. 


 


 


   


   


   


 





